CITY OF HANOVER
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MARCH 2, 2021 — OFFICIAL MINUTES

Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance:

Mayor Chris Kauffman called the regular meeting of Tuesday, March 2, 2021 to order at 7:00 p.m. Present
were Mayor Chris Kauffman, Councilors Ken Warpula, Jim Zajicek, MaryAnn Hallstein and Thomas
Dierberger. Also present was City Attorney Jay Squires, City Engineer Nick Preisler, City Administrator
Brian Hagen, Public Works Supervisor Jason Doboszenski and Accountant Jackie Heinz. Guests included
Ashley Shiwarski and Ben Guell.

Approval of Agenda:

Hallstein added item 7¢ — Internship

MOTION by Hallstein to approve the amended agenda, seconded by Warpula. Motion carried
unanimously.

Consent Agenda:

MOTION by Warpula to approve the consent agenda, seconded by Dierberger.
a. Approve Minutes of February 16, 2021 City Council Work Session Meeting
b. Approve Claims as Presented:

» Claims $ 36,934.28
> Payroll $ 10,123.04
> P/R taxes & Exp $ 3,828.81
» Other Claims $ 2.667.75
» Total Claims $ 53,553.88

c. Res No 03-02-21-11 — Approving Non-Waiver of Statutory Liability Limits
Motion carried unanimously.

Citizen’s Forum:
Ashley Shiwarski, HomeServe: NLC Service Line Warranty Program

Shiwarski stated she represents the National League of Cities which is a program designed to help aging
infrastructure. The homeowner portion is being forgotten about; they partner with the city to provide
service to residents. Shiwarski stated the service is a big benefit and helps raise awareness, the plumbers
are from the local area. Shiwarski further stated they develop a contractor network, all companies go
through a bidding process, must meet license requirements, background checks and drug screening. Costs
are paid by homeowners on a per incident basis, there is no annual fee. Shiwarski stated they only market
via direct mail with three campaigns per year. The city would review and approve any material before it
is mailed, they request the city logo be on any correspondence as well.

Kauffman inquired if businesses are able to participate in the program, Shiwarski stated no, it is for
residential only as the line must be 2 and under. Kauffman inquired if it includes private wells, Shiwarski
stated yes, from the well to where the line enters the home. Kauffman inquired how customers are billed,
Shiwarski stated customers have an option of being invoiced monthly, quarterly, and annually and can
pay with a credit card, check or ACH. Shiwarski further stated most customers choose to pay annually.
Kauffman inquired if the city logo is included on the invoice, Shiwarski stated no, only on the marketing
letters. Hallstein asked Squires his opinion of the program. Squires stated he has not seen the program
before, suggests reaching out to the LMC for information, he would want to see the agreement and make
changes before agreeing. Shiwarski stated they are a member of the LMC. Squires stated membership
requires the company to write a check, it says nothing about the program.



Kauffman suggested to reach out to other cities who are enrolled in the program. Hagen stated he has
talked with St. Michael, they had good feedback. Hagen further stated St. Michael restructured the
agreement to adjust the number of mailings per year and waived fees paid to the city. Hallstein stated
more research needs to be completed and nothing should be decided tonight. Dierberger inquired how
often this type of service has come up in Hanover. Hagen stated for St. Michael, their core is aging. In
Hanover there was one in the Bridges and some commercial, 2/3 of Hanover is 20 years and younger.
Shiwarski stated they average 7-10% of residents signing up in the first year, after three reach they reach
their max at 15-20%.

Hagen inquired how often rates are increased, Shiwarski stated in her seven years with the company she
has not seen an increase. Preisler stated in Hanover the runs are longer as the houses are set back farther,
sounds like reasonable coverage for the amount, you can get a good amount of work for $8,500.00. Hagen
stated he will reach out to more cities involved with the program, will work with Jay on the agreement
and brink back at the first meeting in April. Kauffman stated he is leery of allowing the use of the city
logo. Warpula inquired about St. Michael waiving the fees received, Hagen stated St. Michael used the
collected fees for administration costs the first time, then waived them the second time. Kauffman
inquired about sending out the mailings without the city logo, Shiwarski stated they could but is not their
business model. Dierberger inquired if the data is sold, Shiwarski stated no, any information collected is
only used internally to create flyers. Council consensus to contact other cities on the program for more
information and have the agreement reviewed by Jay.

Public Hearings:
None

Unfinished Business:
Res No 03-02-21-12 — Approving CSAH 19/123 Access Management Study Proposal

Hagen stated the study proposal was brought to the EDA, they supported the study and have similar
concerns but feel it is worth the efforts. Preisler stated he has worked with Hennepin County and other
cities in similar situations, a better access could happen, and the work needs to be done at the city level
and then brought to Hennepin County. Preisler further stated they will show different types of
development in the proposed areas with needed access using a lot of existing data. Kauffman stated the
2010 study would help with different uses. Preisler stated 2007 as well, they will start with a lot of
different alternatives and drill it down. The EDA inquired about having the study go to 117, however
there is no recent interest in those areas. Kauffman inquired where the Wright County study went to,
Preisler stated 123.

Hallstein stated this is a way to make the land more shovel ready, the EDA felt good about the study.
Kauffman stated this is the most studied corridor, asked Preisler to be creative, they know the best use of
the south side, the north side will be challenging. Preisler stated the planners will head the project, they
will talk with other groups, and decide the best plan to make it work for all involved parties. Kauffman
stated Hennepin County can be flexible as shown with a round-a-bout at 101 and 116. Preisler stated they
will present something that is useful.

MOTION by Hallstein to approve Res No 03-02-21-12, seconded by Dierberger. Motion carried
unanimously.



New Business:
Res No 03-02-31-13 — Approving MS4 Part II Application Proposal

Hagen introduced Ben Guell from WSB who handles the cities MS4 items. Guell showed a power point
presentation giving a background of MS4 services, and information about keeping local waters and
wildlife sustainable for years to come. Guell stated the previous permit cycle ran from June 2013 — 2018,
there was then a two-year gap where the MPCA took too long to roll out the new permit changes, and the
current permit runs from November 2020 —2025. Guell went on to discuss prevention practices, minimum
control measures, explained total max daily loads (TMDL) and waste load allocations. Kauffman inquired
what would happen if the city does not do this, Guell stated the MPCA will issue fines which will reoccur
and accumulate. Kauffman stated it is like OSHA and inquired if inspectors will come on site. Guell
stated yes, they will come on site, they do random audits with no notice, Hanover has not had one in a
while so one can be expected to happen soon. Kauffman inquired what the inspectors will do when on
site, Guell stated they will request to look at site inspection forms and supporting paperwork. Preisler
stated with an audit they will start with documentation, if the inspectors feel the city is not complying then
site inspections will start. Kauffman inquired if the city could turn them away the first time, Preisler stated
no, the inspectors will show up with no warning.

Hallstein stated the city has spent a decent amount of software already, what is the reason for the high
cost. Guell stated there a lot of new updates and the transition of electronic forms with swift documents.
Preisler stated with the new permit there are a lot of new requirements to get the city up to speed, the
MPCA is getting much stricter. Kauffman inquired how close the city is to the max amounts, Preisler
stated that number is part of the new requirements that needs to be calculated.

Hallstein inquired if MS4 information displayed for the public at the Hanover Harvest Festival would
meet the requirement and MS4 funds could be used. Preisler stated festivals are good for getting
information out to the public, need to figure out how this works into the requirement for the permit and
creative with the topics. Warpula inquired about using social media, Hagen stated you must document
who is present.

MOTION by Warpula to approve Res No 03-02-31-13, seconded by Dierberger. Motion carried
unanimously.

Snowplowing
Zajicek lead a discussion regarding snowplowing, pushbacks, snow sticks and spring clean-up. He
expressed frustration with the quality of work performed specifically near his property. Doboszenski
provided an explanation of how the work is completed.

Zajicek left the meeting at 8:39 pm.

Internship
Hallstein stated after thinking about the internship and the cost, she is wondering if this is the best use of
$15,000.00. Kauffman stated it was a good when Brian was an intern, and it is part of the city’s civic
duty. Hallstein inquired what will the city get, is it the best use of money for taxpayers. Kauffman stated
if the intern in good, they could apply if a staff opening happens. Dierberger inquired if the max amount
is $15,000, Hagen stated the position is temporary for up to six months. Hagen estimated the amount
based on anticipated hours worked and participation in professional organizations if applicable. Hallstein
stated the expense seems expensive for an opportunity to hire a potential future employee when there is
not a current need, and is trying to be thoughtful with taxpayer’s money. There was a question on whether
the position was approved. Hagen explained that at this point only authorization to advertise the position
was made. Approval to hire an individual would come after interviews are completed. In the interest of



utilizing time effectively, it would not be wise to complete interviews only to have the position denied
upon bringing a final applicant forward for approval. No final consensus was provided.

Reports
Preisler
e Spring road restrictions will begin on Thursday, which is about one week early.
Doboszenski
¢ Getting ag-lime ready on the ball fields
e (Going to move the warming house on Thursday and put-up road restriction signs on Wednesday.
Dierberger
e The Park Board Egg Hunt will be happening and will be COVID-19 friendly. A medallion hunt
is possible sometime this summer.
Warpula
e Inquired if rental feel for AA meetings could be waived. Hagen stated the fee would be $50.00 /
meeting, but the organization could attend a council meeting and ask to waive the fee.
Hagen
e Amy will be having surgery next week.
e Crow River Heights will be the Planning Commission meeting this month with the final plat.
¢ Duininck will be bringing final plat for approval.
Kauffman
e [s unsure of endorsing the HomeServe warranty program.
e Stated staff has done a good job with the meetings being in person and zoom.

Adjournment
MOTION by Warpula to adjourn at 9:03 p.m., seconded by Hallstein. Motion carried unanimously.

APPROVED BY:

Chris Kauffman, Mayor
ATTEST:

Brian Hagen, City Administrator



